
 
 

 
 
 

DYDD GWENER, 11 MAWRTH 2022 
 

 

AT:  YR AELOD O’R CABINET  DROS TAI 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU  
RHITH-GYFARFOD O’R CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU  
AELOD O'R CABINET DROS TAI A GYNHELIR AM 3.45 YP, AR  
DYDD IAU, 17 MAWRTH, 2022 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI’R 
MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA ATODEDIG. 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 

 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Janine Owen 

Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224030 

E-bost: JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 
 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 

 
 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
 

 

2. COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU - 3 MAWRTH 2022 
 

3 - 4 

3. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER  
DYLAN (CAM 2), Y BYNEA 

 

5 - 16 

4. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER  
TERAS GLANMOR, PORTH TYWYN 

 

17 - 28 

5. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER  
GWYNFRYN, SARON 

 

29 - 40 

6. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER DATBLYGIAD 
NEWYDD CYMDEITHAS TAI WALES & WEST, CLOS Y 
PORTHMYN YN ABERGWILI 

 

41 - 50 

 
 
 
 
Sylwer: - Nid oes hawl gan y wasg a'r cyhoedd fynychu'r cyfarfod. Bydd y cofnod penderfyniad yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi fel arfer o fewn 3 diwrnod gwaith. 
 



 

 
 

CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU AELOD O'R CABINET DROS TAI 
 

DYDD Iau, 3 Mawrth 2022 

 
YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd: L.D. Evans (Aelod o’r Cabinet) 
 
Yn bresennol fel sylwedyddion:- 
Y Cynghorwyr   
 
Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol: 
S.E. Watts, Rheolwr Diogelu’r Amgylchedd 
J. Owens, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Rhith-Gyfarfod 
 - 9.00  - 9.15 yb 
 
1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol. 
 

2. COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU - 12 TACHWEDD 2021 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi bod Cofnod Penderfyniadau'r cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 12 Tachwedd 2021 yn gofnod cywir. 
 
 

3. PENNU RHENTI AR GYFER SAFLE SIPSIWN/TEITHWYR PEN-Y-BRYN 
2022/23 
 
Bu'r Aelod Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad i gadarnhau'r cynnydd yn y rhenti 
wythnosol ar gyfer safle Sipsiwn/Teithwyr Pen-y-bryn yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 
2022/23. Hysbyswyd yr Aelod Cabinet fod y safle Sipsiwn a Theithwyr yn 
wasanaeth a gyllidir gan y Dreth Gyngor a bod 15 llain ar safle Pen-y-bryn ar hyn 
o bryd. Er bod pob Awdurdod Lleol a Chymdeithas Dai yng Nghymru wedi alinio 
â'r polisi pennu rhenti tai cymdeithasol mewn perthynas â'r lefelau rhent ar gyfer 
tai cymdeithasol, nid oedd safle Pen-y-bryn yn rhan o'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, ac felly 
nid oedd y lefelau rhent a godir yn cael eu rheoli gan bolisi rhenti Llywodraeth 
Cymru. Fodd bynnag, barnwyd ei bod yn deg cynyddu rhenti ar y safle gan ddilyn 
yr un fformiwla a ddefnyddiwyd ar gyfer tenantiaid y Cyngor. Ar gyfer blwyddyn 
ariannol 2022/23, byddai hynny'n gynnydd o 2.9% ac argymhellwyd pennu'r 
lefelau rhent wythnosol ar gyfer 2022/23 ar £58.72 (net taliadau am wasanaethau 
a threthi dŵr) gan ddarparu incwm blynyddol o £42,278.40 ar gyfer 2022/23, pe 
bai pob un o'r 15 llain yn cael eu defnyddio drwy gydol y flwyddyn. 
 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
3.1 pennu mai £58.72 fyddai'r rhent wythnosol am leiniau ar Safle 

Sipsiwn/Teithwyr Pen-y-bryn, wedi'i gasglu dros 48 wythnos. 
3.2 bod y polisi ynghylch taliadau am wasanaethau yn cael ei 

weithredu i sicrhau bod tenantiaid y safle yn talu am y 
gwasanaethau ychwanegol hyn. 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  2



 

 
 

3.3 pennu mai £34.15 yw'r tâl am ddefnyddio dŵr, wedi'i gasglu dros 
48 wythnos. 

3.4 awdurdodi swyddogion i ymgynghori â phreswylwyr Pen-y-bryn 
a phennu'r taliadau cyffredinol a nodir yn nhabl 1. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________   __________________ 
AELOD O’R CABINET     DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 4



  
 

 

 

CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU YR AELOD CABINET  
DROS DAI 

 

17 MAWRTH 2022 
 

Yr Aelod Cabinet: Portffolio: 

Y Cynghorydd Linda Davies Evans Tai 
 

 

CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL  
AR GYFER DYLAN (CAM 2), Y BYNEA  

 

Y Pwrpas:  

Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw creu Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol ar gyfer datblygiad adeiladu newydd y 
Cyngor yn Dylan (Cam 2), y Bynea.  
 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Cymeradwyo'r Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol arfaethedig ar gyfer y tai newydd ar Gam 2 o ddatblygiad 
adeiladu newydd Dylan y Cyngor a fydd yn helpu i greu lle cynaliadwy ac amrywiol i fyw ynddo.  
 

Y rhesymau:  

 

 Mae Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer datblygiad Dylan (Cam 2) fel 
addasiad i'n prif bolisi gosodiadau, lle bydd meini prawf ychwanegol penodol ar waith i ystyried 
yr angen presennol am dai a materion lleol.  

  

 Bydd hyn yn sicrhau ein bod yn darparu atebion o ran llety i bobl leol sydd â'r angen mwyaf, yn 
cyflawni ein hamcan i symud pobl ymlaen yn gyflym o lety dros dro ac yn ôl i'w cymuned, a 
darparu cyfleoedd i weithwyr allweddol, gan helpu i greu cymuned gynaliadwy.  

 

 Caniateir y defnydd o Gynlluniau Gosodiadau Lleol o dan adran 167(2E) o Ddeddf Tai 1996.  
 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 

Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 

Jonathan Morgan 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Angie Bowen 

Swydd 

 

 

Y Pennaeth Tai  

 

 

 

Rheolwr Hwb Tai  

Rhif Ffôn: 01554 899285 

Cyfeiriad e-bost: 

JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk  

 

 

Rhif Ffôn: 07827 808747          

Cyfeiriad e-bost: 

AnBowen@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

  

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



  
 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 

 

 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
 

 

 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 

                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen 6



  
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
CABINET MEMBER DECISION MEETING  

FOR HOUSING 
 

17th MARCH 2022 
 
 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  
FOR DYLAN (PHASE 2), BYNEA  

 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 
development in Dylan (Phase 2), Bynea.   
 
Context 
 
The Dylan development in the ward of Bynea is one of the Council’s first new build 
developments. The development consists of 32 homes and is a mix of two and four-bedroom 
homes and two-bedroom bungalows.  The development will be handed over in three phases: 
 
Phase 2 of the development is covered in this LLP and will be handed over in April 2022.  
 
Housing Need 
 
The ward of Bynea is an area of high housing need. This need can be best addresses by 
providing: 

 Two-bedroom homes for small families, this includes families currently under 
occupying larger homes in the area: 

 Four-bedroom homes for large families, this includes families currently living in 
unsuitable or overcrowded accommodation in the area; 

 Two-bedroom bungalows for older people in the community whose current homes 
are unsuitable for their needs. 

 
The Council’s new build development at Dylan has been designed to meet this need. The 
homes on the development consist of: 

 22 x two-bedroom homes 

 6 x four-bedroom homes 

 4 x two-bedroom bungalows 
 
Phase 2 which relates to this Local lettings Policy is 8 x 2-bedroom houses. 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 7



  
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:  Jonathan Morgan                  Head of Housing 

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

YES  YES NONE  

 
NONE  

 
YES 

 
NONE  YES 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

2. Legal   

The policy must be signed off by the Executive Board Member for Housing before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership to ensure no adverse impact on 
other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy. 
 

 

 Risk Management Issues 

Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially result in a 
lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 

 Physical Assets   

The new development at Dylan will result in 32 additional homes and is a mix of two and four-
bedroom homes and two-bedroom bungalows being managed by Housing Services as part of 
the Council stock. Phase 2 is covered in this LLP and comprises of 8 x 2-bedroom houses. 

 

  

Tudalen 8



  
 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:    Jonathan Morgan    Head of Housing                                          

 

 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

n/a 

 

2.Local Member(s)   

Cllr. Deryk Cundy – Bynea 

 

Consulted on 08/03/22 – full comments to be provided at meeting 

 

3.Community / Town Council  

n/a 

 

4.Relevant Partners   

RSL partnership board consulted on 08/03/2022 - full comments to be provided at meeting. 

 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THERE ARE NONE   
 

 

 
 

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



  
 

Local Lettings Policy – 
Dylan Phase 2 

Bynea 

17th March 2022 (Final) 

carmarthenshire.gov.wales 

Tudalen 11



2 
 

 

1.0 What is the purpose and context of this report? 
 

The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 

development in Dylan (Phase 2), Bynea.   

 

A LLP is being used for the Dylan development as an adjustment to our main lettings policy where 

specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing need and local issues. This 

will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet our 

objective to move people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their community, 

and provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable community.  

 

2.0 What will the development deliver? 
 

The Dylan development in the ward of Bynea, it is one of the Council’s first new build developments. 

The development consists of 32 homes and is a mix of two and four-bedroom homes and two-

bedroom bungalows.  The development will be handed over in three phases: 

 

Phase 1 – 2 x 2-bedroom houses & 2 x 4-bedroom houses (occupation May 2020). 

Phase 2 is covered in this LLP: 8 x 2-bedroom houses (April 2022); and  

Phase 3 – 12 x 2-bedroom houses, 4 x 4-bedroom houses & 4 x 2-bedroom bungalows. (Further LLP 

prior to August 2022). 

 

Dylan site plan: 

 

 

Tudalen 12



3 
 

 
 

  

3.0 What is the housing need in the area? 
The ward of Bynea is an area of high housing need. This need can be best addresses by providing: 

 Two-bedroom homes for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 

larger homes in the area: 

 Four-bedroom homes for large families, this includes families currently living in unsuitable or 

overcrowded accommodation in the area; 

 Two-bedroom bungalows for older people in the community whose current homes are 

unsuitable for their needs. 

 

The Council’s new build development at Dylan has been designed to meet this need. The homes on 

the development consist of: 

 22 x two-bedroom homes 

 6 x four-bedroom homes 

 4 x two-bedroom bungalows 

 

Phase 2 which relates to this Local lettings Policy is 8 x 2-bedroom houses. 

 

4.0 What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy? 

This LLP has four key aims, these are: 
 

 Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who are currently 

homeless; 

 Providing homes for local people;  

 Providing homes for key workers; and 

 Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

Tudalen 13



4 
 

This LLP will ensure that the allocations meet local housing need whilst also ensuring that it is a 
diverse place to live for current and future residents. 
  
With the exception of Priority group ‘A’, the new homes will be advertised through Canfod Cartref, 
and the adverts will meet the proposals set out in this Local Lettings Policy. We will seek to identify 
an appropriate mix of tenants based on their current housing need and individual circumstances. The 
LLP will also provide opportunities to transfer existing social housing tenants, if it offers up a better 
use of housing stock and subsequent housing opportunities to others on the housing register. 
 

5.0 What is the Council’s Choice Based Lettings process? 

The Local Lettings Policy will be implemented in line with the Council’s Choice Based Lettings 
Procedure that states:  
 

“A local lettings policy must be approved by the Cabinet Member for Housing (Council) or the housing 
association board before it can be put into place. It must have partnership approval to ensure any 
adverse unintended impact on other partner landlords are mitigated and the review period agreed.  
An example is, when looking at new housing developments, a local lettings plan is required to ensure 
a sustainable community cohesion is sought. Preference can be awarded to transfer applicants to allow 
for a mix of tenants in a new area.”  

 

6.0 What will be the letting exclusions at Dylan (Phase 2)? 
 

When allocating homes at Dylan, the following groups will be excluded: 

 

There are some groups of people who by law cannot join the register regardless of their housing     

need or circumstances.  These are people who: 

 

 Come under various immigration rules and cannot claim housing help; 

 Live outside the Common Travel Area, (UK, Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or the Republic 
of Ireland) for tax purposes; 

 Do not have the right to live in the UK; and 

 The Secretary of State has decided are not eligible for housing. 
 

In addition to these exclusions the following applicants will also be excluded: 

 

 An applicant, or a member of their household, who are regarded to have met the test of 

unacceptable behavior under Section 160A(8) of the Housing Act 1996. This would include 

non-payment of rent, breach of former tenancy conditions, conduct causing nuisance or 

annoyance and using a property for illegal/immoral purposes. 

 

It is not necessary for the applicant to have been a tenant of the local authority when the   

unacceptable behavior occurred.  The test is whether the behavior would have entitled the 

local authority to a possession order if the tenant had been a secure tenant. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14



5 
 

7.0 What will be the LLP for the two-bedroom homes on Dylan (Phase 2)? 

Lettings will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for each priority will be 
limited to the percentages identified.  
 
Following two panel meetings and/or two LLP advertisements, if any homes remain in each of the 
priorities, these will then be re-advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with our main lettings 
policy. 

 

Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number of 
homes 

% 
Priority A  

 Applicants that have been given exceptional circumstances by the 
Head of Housing that do not fall under the exclusion category 
including direct matches from the Accessible Housing Register;  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have been 

agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom the authority 

owes a full homelessness duty (section 75), are in Band A and with 

direct links to the wards of Bynea, Llangennech or Llwynhendy);  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have been 

agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom the authority 

owes a full homelessness duty (section 75) and are in Band A. 

25% 
 

(Phase 2 –  
2 homes) 

 
 

Priority B Social Housing transfer applicants in Band A or B, who are not excluded, 
and where their current social housing home is in the wards of Bynea, 
Llangennech or Llwynhendy.  

25% 
(Phase 2 –  
2 homes) 

 
Priority C Non-transfer Band A applicants with direct links to the wards of Bynea, 

Llangennech or Llwynhendy.  
25% 

(Phase 2 –  
2 homes) 

 

Priority D Non-transfer Band B applicants with direct links to the wards of Bynea, 
Llangennech or Llwynhendy. 

15% 
(Phase 2 – 
1 home) 

 

Priority E *Key workers who can demonstrate they need accommodation to take up 
or sustain the offer of permanent employment in Carmarthenshire.  

10% 
(Phase 2 – 
1 home) 

 
*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

 Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, Local Authority social 

workers, registered care staff in our health and social care sector; and 

 Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and Rescue Service, prison 

service and other national security roles. 

 

Tudalen 15



6 
 

8.0 Advertisement  

Except for Priority group ‘A’ the development will be advertised through Canfod Cartref where 
relevant information will be required so that the adverts are consistent and transparent. 
 

9.0 Shortlisting  

The applicants’ bids will be assessed based on the letting conditions set out in this Local Lettings 
Policy. 
 

10.0 Equality and Diversity  
 

When letting these homes, CCC will not discriminate on the grounds of gender, race, ethnic or 

national origin, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability. 
 

11.0 Term and Review  

This Local Lettings Policy will be reviewed ahead of developing a LLP for Dylan (Phase 3), and will 
remain in place for six months following all homes being let. After this time, it will be further reviewed 
by Carmarthenshire County Council, to determine its impact on the community and whether the term 
should be extended. 
 
Signed on behalf of Carmarthenshire County Council: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 

Tudalen 16



  
 

 

CABINET MEMBER DECISION MEETING  
FOR HOUSING 

 

17TH MARCH 2022 
 

Cabinet Member: Portfolio: 

Cllr. Linda Davies Evans Housing 
 

 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY FOR  
GLANMOR TERRACE, BURRY PORT  

Purpose: 

The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 
development in Glanmor Terrace, Burry Port.   
 

Recommendations / key decisions required: 

To approve the proposed Local Lettings Policy for the new homes on the Glanmor Terrace Council 
new build development that will help create a sustainable and diverse place to live. 

 

Reasons:  

 

 A LLP is being used for the Glanmor Terrace development as an adjustment to our main lettings 
policy where specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing need and 
local issues. 

  

 This will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet 
our objective to move people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their 
community, and provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable 
community.  

 

 For the 10 one-bedroom apartments provided on this development the LLP will also ensure that 
preference is given to households over the age of 60 or to people with disabilities that require 
specifically designed accommodation.  

 

 The application of Local Lettings Plans is permitted under section 167(2E) of the 1996 Housing 
Act 

 

Directorate 

Communities 

Name of Head of Service: 

Jonathan Morgan 

 

Report Author: 

Angie Bowen 

Designation 

 

 

Head of Housing  

 

Housing Hwb Manager 

Tel No. 01554 899285 

E Mail Address: 

JMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Tel No. 07827 808747          

Email Address: 

AnBowen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

  

Tudalen 17

Eitem Rhif  4



  
 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 

 

 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
 

 

 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 

                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not adopted: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen 18



  
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
CABINET MEMBER DECISION MEETING  

FOR HOUSING 
 

17th MARCH 2022 
 
 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY FOR  
GLANMOR TERRACE, BURRY PORT  

 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 
development in Glanmor Terrace, Burry Port.   
 
Context 
 
The Glanmor Terrace development in the ward of Burry Port is an innovative new build 
Council development, using the latest low carbon technology. The development consists of 32 
homes and is a mix of 22 two-bedroom houses and 10 one-bedroom apartments. 
 
The development will be handed over in one phase, at the end of March 2022.  
 
Housing Need 
 
The ward of Burry Port, in which Glanmor Terrace is situated, is an area of high housing 
need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

 Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under 
occupying larger houses in the area; and 

 One-bedroom apartments for single people, households over the age of 60 or 
people with disabilities that require specifically designed accommodation.  

 
As a result, the development consists of: 
 

 22 x two-bedroom houses; and 

 10 x one-bedroom apartments for people aged over 60 or people with disabilities 
that require specifically designed accommodation.  

REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 19



  
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:  Jonathan Morgan                  Head of Housing 

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

YES  YES NONE  

 
NONE  

 
YES 

 
NONE  YES 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

2. Legal   

The policy must be signed off by the Executive Board Member for Housing before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership to ensure no adverse impact on 
other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy. 
 

 

 Risk Management Issues 

Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially result in a 
lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 

 Physical Assets   

The new development at Glanmor Terrace will result in 32 additional homes being managed by 
Housing Services as part of the Council stock. 22 x two-bedroom houses; and 10 x one-
bedroom apartments for people aged over 60 or people with disabilities that require specifically 
designed accommodation.  

 

  

Tudalen 20



  
 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:    Jonathan Morgan    Head of Housing                                          

 

 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

n/a 

 

2.Local Member(s)   

Cllr. Amanda Fox – Burry Port 

Cllr. John James – Burry Port 

 

Consulted on 07/03/22 – full comments to be provided at meeting 

 

3.Community / Town Council  

n/a 

 

4.Relevant Partners   

RSL partnership board consulted  07/03/22 - full comments to be provided at meeting. 

 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THERE ARE NONE   
 

 

 

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



  
 

Local Lettings Policy – 
Glanmor Terrace 

Burry Port 

17th March 2022 (Final) 

carmarthenshire.gov.wales 

Tudalen 23



2 
 

 

1.0 What is the purpose and context of this report? 
 

The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 

development in Glanmor Terrace, Burry Port.   

 

A LLP is being used for the Glanmor Terrace development as an adjustment to our main lettings policy 

where specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing need and local issues. 

This will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet our 

objective to move people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their community, 

and provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable community.  

 

For the 10 one-bedroom apartments provided on this development the LLP will also ensure that 

preference is given to households over the age of 60 or to people with disabilities that require 

specifically designed accommodation.  

 

2.0 What will the development deliver? 
 

The Glanmor Terrace development in the ward of Burry Port is an innovative new build Council 

development, using the latest low carbon technology. The development consists of 32 homes and is 

a mix of 22 two-bedroom houses and 10 one-bedroom apartments. 

 

The development will be handed over in one phase, at the end of March 2022.  

 

The site plan is shown below:  
 

 

  

3.0 What is the housing need in the area? 

The ward of Burry Port, in which Glanmor Terrace is situated, is an area of high housing need. This 
need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

 Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying larger 

houses in the area; and 

Tudalen 24



3 
 

 One-bedroom apartments for single people, households over the age of 60 or people with 

disabilities that require specifically designed accommodation.  

 

As a result, the development consists of: 
 

 22 x two-bedroom houses; and 

 10 x one-bedroom apartments for people aged over 60 or people with disabilities that require 

specifically designed accommodation.  

 

4.0 What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy? 

This LLP has four key aims, these are: 
 

 Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who are currently 

homeless; 

 Providing homes for local people;  

 Providing homes for key workers; and 

 Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

This LLP will ensure that the allocations meet local housing need whilst also ensuring that it is a 
diverse place to live for current and future residents. 
  
With the exception of Priority group ‘A’, the new homes will be advertised through Canfod Cartref 
and the adverts will meet the proposals set out in this Local Lettings Policy. We will seek to identify 
an appropriate mix of tenants based on their current housing need and individual circumstances. The 
LLP will also provide opportunities to transfer existing social housing tenants, if it offers up a better 
use of housing stock and subsequent housing opportunities to others on the housing register. 
 

5.0 What is the Council’s Choice Based Lettings process? 

The Local Lettings Policy will be implemented in line with the Council’s Choice Based Lettings 
Procedure that states:  
 

“A local lettings policy must be approved by the Cabinet Member for Housing (Council) or the housing 
association board before it can be put into place. It must have partnership approval to ensure any 
adverse unintended impact on other partner landlords are mitigated and the review period agreed.  
An example is, when looking at new housing developments, a local lettings plan is required to ensure 
a sustainable community cohesion is sought. Preference can be awarded to transfer applicants to allow 
for a mix of tenants in a new area.”  

 

6.0 What will be the letting exclusions at Glanmor Terrace? 
When allocating homes and apartments at Glanmor Terrace, the following groups will be 

excluded: 

 

There are some groups of people who by law cannot join the register regardless of their housing     

need or circumstances.  These are people who: 

 

 Come under various immigration rules and cannot claim housing help; 

Tudalen 25



4 
 

 Live outside the Common Travel Area, (UK, Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or the Republic 
of Ireland) for tax purposes; 

 Do not have the right to live in the UK; and 

 The Secretary of State has decided are not eligible for housing. 
 

In addition to these exclusions the following applicants will also be excluded: 

 

 An applicant, or a member of their household, who are regarded to have met the test of 

unacceptable behavior under Section 160A(8) of the Housing Act 1996. This would include 

non-payment of rent, breach of former tenancy conditions, conduct causing nuisance or 

annoyance and using a property for illegal/immoral purposes. 

 

It is not necessary for the applicant to have been a tenant of the local authority when the   

unacceptable behavior occurred.  The test is whether the behavior would have entitled the 

local authority to a possession order if the tenant had been a secure tenant. 

 

7.0 What will be the LLP for the two bed homes on Glanmor Terrace? 

Lettings will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for each priority will be 
limited to the percentages identified.  
 
Following two panel meetings and/or two LLP advertisements, if any homes remain in each of the 
priorities, these will then be re-advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with our main lettings 
policy. 

 

Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number of 
homes 

% 

Priority A  

 Applicants that have been given exceptional circumstances 
by the Head of Housing that do not fall under the exclusion 
category including direct matches from the Accessible 
Housing Register;  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have 

been agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom 

the authority owes a full homelessness duty (section 75), are 

in Band A and with direct links to the wards of Burry Port 

and Pembrey; and 

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have 

been agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom 

the authority owes a full homelessness duty (section 75) and 

are in Band A. 

25% 
(6 homes) 

Priority B Social Housing transfer applicants in Band A or B, who are not 
excluded, and where their current social housing home is in the 
wards of Burry Port or Pembrey.  

25% 
(6 homes) 

Priority C Non-transfer Band A applicants with direct links to the wards of 
Burry Port or Pembrey.  

25% 

Tudalen 26



5 
 

 (5 homes) 

Priority D Non-transfer Band B applicants with direct links to the wards of 
Burry Port and Pembrey  

15% 
(3 homes) 

Priority E *Key workers who can demonstrate they need accommodation 
to take up or sustain the offer of permanent employment in 
Carmarthenshire.  

10% 
(2 homes) 

*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

 Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, Local Authority social 

workers, registered care staff in our health and social care sector; and 

 Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and Rescue Service, prison 

service and other national security roles. 

 

8.0 What will be the LLP for 1-bedroom apartments on Glanmor Terrace? 

Lettings will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for each priority will be 
limited to the percentages identified.  
 
 Preference will be given to households over the age of 60 or to people with disabilities that require 
specifically designed accommodation. 
 
Following two panel meetings and/or two LLP advertisements, if any homes remain in each of the 
priorities, these will then be re-advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with our main lettings 
policy. 

 
 

Allocation 
Category 

Allocation Type Number of 
homes 

% 
Priority A  Applicants that have been given exceptional circumstances 

by the Head of Housing that do not fall under the exclusion 
category including direct matches from the Accessible 
Housing Register;  
 

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have 

been agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom 

the authority owes a full homelessness duty (section 75), are 

in Band A and with direct links to the wards of Burry Port 

and Pembrey; and 

 

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have 

been agreed by the “Move on Panel”; or applicants to whom 

the authority owes a full homelessness duty (section 75) and 

are in Band A; or applicants that have been agreed by the 

Accommodation Panel. 

30% 
(4 homes) 

Priority B Social Housing transfer applicants in Band A or B, who are not 
excluded, and where their current social housing home is in the 
wards of Burry Port or Pembrey.  

25% 
(2 homes) 

Tudalen 27



6 
 

Priority C Non-transfer Band A applicants with direct links to the wards of 
Burry Port or Pembrey.  
 

25% 
(2 homes) 

Priority D Non-transfer Band B applicants with direct links to the wards of 
Burry Port and Pembrey  

10% 
(1 home) 

Priority E *Key workers who can demonstrate they need accommodation 
to take up or sustain the offer of permanent employment in 
Carmarthenshire. 

10% 
(1 home) 

*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

 Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, Local Authority social 

workers, registered care staff in our health and social care sector; and 

 Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and Rescue Service, prison 

service and other national security roles. 

 

9.0 Advertisement  

Except for Priority group ‘A’ the development will be advertised through Canfod Cartref where 
relevant information will be required so that the adverts are consistent and transparent. 
 

10.0 Shortlisting  

The applicants’ bids will be assessed based on the letting conditions set out in this Local Lettings 
Policy. 
 

11.0 Equality and Diversity  
 

When letting these homes, CCC will not discriminate on the grounds of gender, race, ethnic or 

national origin, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability. 
 

12.0 Term and Review  

This Local Lettings Policy will remain in place for six months following all homes and apartments being 
let. After this time, it will be reviewed by Carmarthenshire County Council, to determine its impact 
on the community and whether the term should be extended. 
 
Signed on behalf of Carmarthenshire County Council: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 

Tudalen 28



  
 

 

 

CABINET MEMBER DECISION MEETING FOR HOUSING 
 

17th MARCH 2022 

 
 

Cabinet Member: Portfolio: 

Cllr. Linda Davies Evans Housing 
 

 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  
FOR GWYNFRYN, SARON 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 
development in Gwynfryn, Saron. 
 

Recommendations / key decisions required: 

 

To approve the proposed Local Lettings Policy for the new homes on the Gwynfryn Council new 
build development that will help create a sustainable and diverse place to live. 
 

Reasons:  

 

 A LLP is being used for the Gwynfryn development as an adjustment to our main lettings 
policy where specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing need and 
local issues. 

  

 This will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet 
our objective to move people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their 
community, and provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable 
community.  

 

 The application of Local Lettings Plans is permitted under section 167(2E) of the 1996 Housing 
Act.  

 

Directorate 

Communities 

Name of Head of Service: 

Jonathan Morgan 

 

 

Report Author: 

Angie Bowen 

Designation 

 

 

Head of Housing  

 

 

 

Housing Hwb Manager 

Tel No. 01554 899285 

E Mail Address: 

JMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

 

Tel No. 07827 808747          

Email Address: 

AnBowen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

  

Tudalen 29

Eitem Rhif  5



  
 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 

 

 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
 

 

 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 

                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen 30



  
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
CABINET MEMBER DECISION MEETING  

FOR HOUSING 
 

17th MARCH 2022 
 
 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  
FOR GWYNFRYN, SARON 

 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 
development in Gwynfryn, Saron.   
 
Context 
 
The Gwynfryn development is in the ward of Saron. The development will deliver 28 social rented 
homes: 
 

 18 x two-bedroom houses; 

 6 x three-bedroom houses; and 

 4 x four-bedroom houses. 
 
The development will be handed over in one phase in April 2022. 
 
Housing Need 
 
The ward of Saron, in which the Gwynfryn development is situated, is an area of high housing 
need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

 Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 
larger houses in the area; 

 Three-bedroom homes for families; and 

 Four-bedroom houses for large families, this includes families currently overcrowded in their 
current homes in the area. 

 

REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 31



  
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:  Jonathan Morgan                  Head of Housing 

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

YES  YES NONE  

 
NONE  

 
YES 

 
NONE  YES 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

2. Legal   

The policy must be signed off by the Executive Board Member for Housing before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership to ensure no adverse impact on 
other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy. 
 

 

 Risk Management Issues 

Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially result in a 
lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 

 Physical Assets   

The new development at Gwynfryn will result in 28 additional homes and is a mix of two, three 
and four-bedroom homes being managed by Housing Services as part of the Council stock.  

 

  

Tudalen 32



  
 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:    Jonathan Morgan    Head of Housing                                          

 

 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

n/a 

 

2.Local Member(s)   

Cllr. Karen Davies– Saron 

Cllr. Carl J. Harris – Saron 

 

Consulted on 08/03/22 – full comments to be provided at meeting 

 

3.Community / Town Council  

n/a 

 

4.Relevant Partners   

RSL partnership board consulted - full comments to be provided at meeting. 

 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THERE ARE NONE   
 

 

 

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



  
 

Local Lettings Policy – 
Gwynfryn 

Saron 

17th March 2022 (Final) 

carmarthenshire.gov.wales 

Tudalen 35



2 
 

 

1.0 What is the purpose and context of this report? 
 

The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Council new build 

development in Gwynfryn, Saron.   

 

A LLP is being used for the Gwynfryn development as an adjustment to our main lettings policy where 

specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing need and local issues. This 

will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet our 

objective to move people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their community, 

and provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable community.  

 

2.0 What will the development deliver? 
 

The Gwynfryn development is in the ward of Saron. The development will deliver 28 social rented 

homes: 

 18 x two-bedroom houses 

 6 x three-bedroom houses 

 4 x four- bedroom houses 

 

The development will be handed over in one phase in April 2022. 

 

Gwynfryn site plan: 

 

 

Tudalen 36



3 
 

 
 

  

3.0 What is the housing need in the area? 
The ward of Saron, in which the Gwynfryn development is situated, is an area of high housing need. 

This need can be best addressed by providing: 

 

 Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 

larger houses in the area; 

 Three-bedroom homes for families; and 

 Four-bedroom houses for large families, this includes families currently overcrowded in 

their current homes in the area. 

 

As a result, this development consists of: 

 

18 x two-bedroom houses; 

6 x three-bedroom houses; and 

4 x four-bedroom houses. 

 

4.0 What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy? 

This LLP has four key aims, these are: 
 

 Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who are currently 

homeless; 

 Providing homes for local people;  

 Providing homes for key workers; and 

 Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

This LLP will ensure that the allocations meet local housing need whilst also ensuring that it is a 
diverse place to live for current and future residents. 
  

Tudalen 37



4 
 

With the exception of Priority group ‘A’, the new homes will be advertised through Canfod Cartref, 
and the adverts will meet the proposals set out in this Local Lettings Policy. We will seek to identify 
an appropriate mix of tenants based on their current housing need and individual circumstances. The 
LLP will also provide opportunities to transfer existing social housing tenants, if it offers up a better 
use of housing stock and subsequent housing opportunities to others on the housing register. 
 

5.0 What is the Council’s Choice Based Lettings process? 

The Local Lettings Policy will be implemented in line with the Council’s Choice Based Lettings 
Procedure that states:  
 

“A local lettings policy must be approved by the Cabinet Member for Housing (Council) or the housing 
association board before it can be put into place. It must have partnership approval to ensure any 
adverse unintended impact on other partner landlords are mitigated and the review period agreed.  
An example is, when looking at new housing developments, a local lettings plan is required to ensure 
a sustainable community cohesion is sought. Preference can be awarded to transfer applicants to allow 
for a mix of tenants in a new area.”  

 

6.0 What will be the letting exclusions at Gwynfryn? 
 

When allocating homes at Gwynfryn, the following groups will be excluded: 

 

There are some groups of people who by law cannot join the register regardless of their housing     

need or circumstances.  These are people who: 

 

 Come under various immigration rules and cannot claim housing help; 

 Live outside the Common Travel Area, (UK, Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or the Republic 
of Ireland) for tax purposes; 

 Do not have the right to live in the UK; and 

 The Secretary of State has decided are not eligible for housing. 
 

In addition to these exclusions the following applicants will also be excluded: 

 

 An applicant, or a member of their household, who are regarded to have met the test of 

unacceptable behavior under Section 160A(8) of the Housing Act 1996. This would include 

non-payment of rent, breach of former tenancy conditions, conduct causing nuisance or 

annoyance and using a property for illegal/immoral purposes. 

 

It is not necessary for the applicant to have been a tenant of the local authority when the   

unacceptable behavior occurred.  The test is whether the behavior would have entitled the 

local authority to a possession order if the tenant had been a secure tenant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 38



5 
 

7.0 What will be the LLP for the homes on Gwynfryn? 

Lettings will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for each priority will be 
limited to the percentages identified.  
 
Following two panel meetings and/or two LLP advertisements, if any homes remain in each of the 
priorities, these will then be re-advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with our main lettings 
policy. 

 

Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number of 
homes 

% 
Priority A  

 Applicants that have been given exceptional circumstances by the 
Head of Housing that do not fall under the exclusion category 
including direct matches from the Accessible Housing Register;  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have been 

agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom the authority 

owes a full homelessness duty (section 75), are in Band A and with 

direct links to the wards of Saron, Ammanford, Llandybie or Betws;  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have been 

agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom the authority 

owes a full homelessness duty (section 75) and are in Band A. 

25% 
 

(Phase 2 –  
7 homes) 

 
 

Priority B Social Housing transfer applicants in Band A or B, who are not excluded, 
and where their current social housing home is in the wards of Saron, 
Ammanford, Llandybie or Betws. 

25% 
(Phase 2 –  
7 homes) 

 
Priority C Non-transfer Band A applicants with direct links to the wards of Saron, 

Ammanford, Llandybie or Betws. 
25% 

(Phase 2 –  
7 homes) 

 

Priority D Non-transfer Band B applicants with direct links to the wards of Saron, 
Ammanford, Llandybie or Betws. 

15% 
(Phase 2 – 
4 homes) 

 

Priority E *Key workers who can demonstrate they need accommodation to take up 
or sustain the offer of permanent employment in Carmarthenshire.  

10% 
(Phase 2 – 
3 homes) 

 
*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

 Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, Local Authority social 

workers, registered care staff in our health and social care sector; and 

 Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and Rescue Service, prison 

service and other national security roles. 

 

Tudalen 39



6 
 

8.0 Advertisement  

Except for Priority group ‘A’ the development will be advertised through Canfod Cartref where 
relevant information will be required so that the adverts are consistent and transparent. 
 

9.0 Shortlisting  

The applicants’ bids will be assessed based on the letting conditions set out in this Local Lettings 
Policy. 
 

10.0 Equality and Diversity  
 

When letting these homes, CCC will not discriminate on the grounds of gender, race, ethnic or 

national origin, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability. 
 

11.0 Term and Review  

This Local Lettings Policy will remain in place for six months following all homes being let. After this 
time, it will be reviewed by Carmarthenshire County Council, to determine its impact on the 
community and whether the term should be extended. 
 
Signed on behalf of Carmarthenshire County Council: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 

Tudalen 40



  
 

 

 

CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU YR AELOD CABINET  
DROS DAI 

 
17 MAWRTH 2022 

 

Yr Aelod Cabinet: Portffolio: 

Y Cynghorydd Linda Davies Evans Tai 
 

 

CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER DATBLYGIAD 
NEWYDD CYMDEITHAS TAI WALES & WEST,  

CLOS Y PORTHMYN YN ABERGWILI.  

Y Pwrpas:  

Diben yr adroddiad hwn yw creu Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol ar gyfer datblygiad newydd Cymdeithas 
Tai Wales & West yn Clos y Porthmyn, Abergwili.  
 
Bydd y Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol hwn yn parhau ar waith am 6 mis ar ôl y gosodiadau cychwynnol, 
er mwyn sicrhau bod y gymuned wedi'i sefydlu'n briodol. 
 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

 

Cymeradwyo'r Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol arfaethedig ar gyfer y tai newydd yn natblygiad adeiladu 
newydd Cymdeithas Tai Wales & West, Clos y Porthmyn, a fydd yn helpu i greu lle cynaliadwy ac 
amrywiol i fyw ynddo. 
 

Y rhesymau:  

 Mae Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer datblygiad Clos y Porthmyn fel 
addasiad i'n prif bolisi gosodiadau, lle bydd meini prawf ychwanegol penodol ar waith i ystyried 
yr angen presennol am dai a materion lleol. 

  

 Bydd hyn yn sicrhau ein bod yn darparu atebion o ran llety i bobl leol sydd â'r angen mwyaf, yn 
cyflawni ein hamcan i symud pobl ymlaen yn gyflym o lety dros dro ac yn ôl i'w cymuned, a 
darparu cyfleoedd i weithwyr allweddol, gan helpu i greu cymuned gynaliadwy.  

 

 Caniateir y defnydd o Gynlluniau Gosodiadau Lleol o dan adran 167(2E) o Ddeddf Tai 1996.  
 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 

Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Jonathan Morgan 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Lucy Roberts 

Swydd 

 

 

Y Pennaeth Tai  

 

Swyddog Cartrefi Newydd 

Rhif Ffôn: 01554 899285 

JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

 

Rhif Ffôn: 07890 024891          

LRoberts@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

  

Tudalen 41

Eitem Rhif  6



  
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
CABINET MEMBER DECISION MEETING  

FOR HOUSING 
 

17th MARCH 2022 
 
 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  
FOR CLOS Y PORTHMYN, WALES & WEST HOUSING 

ASSOCIATION’S NEW DEVELOPMENT IN ABERGWILI.  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Wales & West Housing 
Association’s new build development in Clos y Porthmyn, Abergwili. This policy will ensure that 
we create a sustainable community where people are proud to live.  
 
 
Context 
 
The Clos y Porthmyn development is in the ward of Abergwili. The development will deliver 6 
social rented homes: 
 

 2 x one-bedroom flats; 

 4 x two-bedroom houses. 
 
The development will be handed over in one phase in May 2022. 
 
Housing Need 
 
The ward of Abergwili, in which the Clos y Porthmyn development is situated, is an area of high 
housing need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

 One-bedroom flats for small households 

 Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 
larger houses in the area. 

 
By applying a mix of tenants across the bands the aim is to ensure that the community is made up 
of a mix of households and not all high need cases.  The aim is to establish community cohesion 
and sustainable homes for the new development seeing a brand-new community coming 
together.   
 
 

REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 42



  
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:  Jonathan Morgan                  Head of Housing 

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

YES  YES NONE  

 
NONE  

 
YES 

 
NONE  NONE 

 Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

 Legal   

The policy must be signed off by the Cabinet  Board Member for Housing before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership Board to ensure no adverse impact 
on other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy. 
 

 

 Risk Management Issues 

Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially result in a 
lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 

  

Tudalen 43



  
 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:    Jonathan Morgan    Head of Housing                                          

 

 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

n/a 

 

2.Local Member(s)   

Cllr. Dorian Williams – Abergwili 

Consulted on 10/03/2022 – full comments to be provided at meeting 

 

3.Community / Town Wales & West Housing  

n/a 

 

4.Relevant Partners   

RSL partnership board consulted - full comments to be provided at meeting. 

 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THERE ARE NONE   
 

 

 
 

Tudalen 44



  
 

Local Lettings Policy  
– Clos y Porthmyn  

Abergwili 

17th March 2022  

carmarthenshire.gov.wales 

Tudalen 45



2 
 

 
 

1.0 What is the purpose and context of this report?      
 

The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the new build development by 

Wales and West Housing Association in Clos y Porthmyn, Abergwili.   

 

A LLP is being used for the Clos y Porthmyn development as an adjustment to our main lettings policy 

where specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing need and local issues. 

This will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet our 

objective to move people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their community, 

and provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable community.   

 

2.0 What will the development deliver? 
 

The Clos y Porthmyn development is in the ward of Abergwili. The development will deliver 6 social 

rented homes: 

 2 x one-bedroom apartments 

 4 x two-bedroom houses 

 

The development will be handed over in one phase in April 2022. 

 

3.0 What is the housing need in the area? 
The ward of Abergwili, in which the Clos y Porthmyn development is situated, is an area of high 

housing need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 

 

 One-bedroom flats for small households; and  

 Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 

larger houses in the area; 

 

As a result, this development consists of: 

2 x one-bedroom flats; and 

4 x two-bedroom houses; 

 

4.0 What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy? 

This LLP has four key aims, these are: 
 

 Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who are currently 

homeless; 

 Providing homes for local people;  

 Providing homes for key workers; and 

 Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

Tudalen 46



3 
 

This LLP will ensure that the allocations meet local housing need whilst also ensuring that it is a 
diverse place to live for current and future residents. 
  
With the exception of Priority group ‘A’, the new homes will be advertised through Canfod Cartref, 
and the adverts will meet the proposals set out in this Local Lettings Policy. We will seek to identify 
an appropriate mix of tenants based on their current housing need and individual circumstances. The 
LLP will also provide opportunities to transfer existing social housing tenants, if it offers up a better 
use of housing stock and subsequent housing opportunities to others on the housing register. 
 

5.0 What is the Council’s Choice Based Lettings process? 

The Local Lettings Policy will be implemented in line with the Council’s Choice Based Lettings 
Procedure that states:  
 
“A local lettings policy must be approved by the Cabinet Member for Housing (Council) or the housing 
association board before it can be put into place. It must have partnership approval to ensure any adverse 
unintended impact on other partner landlords are mitigated and the review period agreed.  
An example is, when looking at new housing developments, a local lettings plan is required to ensure a 
sustainable community cohesion is sought. Preference can be awarded to transfer applicants to allow for a mix 
of tenants in a new area.”  

 

6.0 What will be the letting exclusions at Clos y Porthmyn ? 
 

When allocating homes at Clos y Porthmyn, the following groups will be excluded: 

 

There are some groups of people who by law cannot join the register regardless of their housing     

need or circumstances.  These are people who: 

 

 Come under various immigration rules and cannot claim housing help; 

 Live outside the Common Travel Area, (UK, Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or the Republic 
of Ireland) for tax purposes; 

 Do not have the right to live in the UK; and 

 The Secretary of State has decided are not eligible for housing. 
 

In addition to these exclusions the following applicants will also be excluded: 

 

 An applicant, or a member of their household, who are regarded to have met the test of 
unacceptable behavior under Section 160A(8) of the Housing Act 1996. This would include 
non-payment of rent, breach of former tenancy conditions, conduct causing nuisance or 
annoyance and using a property for illegal/immoral purposes. 

 

It is not necessary for the applicant to have been a tenant of the local authority when the   

unacceptable behavior occurred.  The test is whether the behavior would have entitled the local 

authority to a possession order if the tenant had been a secure tenant. 

 

7.0 What will be the LLP for the homes on Clos y Porthmyn? 

Lettings will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for each priority will be 
limited to the percentages identified.  

Tudalen 47



4 
 

 
Following two panel meetings and/or two LLP advertisements, if any homes remain in each of the 
priorities, these will then be re-advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with our main lettings 
policy. 

 

Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number of 
homes 

% 

Priority A  Applicants that have been given exceptional circumstances by the 
Head of Housing that do not fall under the exclusion category 
including direct matches from the Accessible Housing Register;  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have been 

agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom the authority 

owes a full homelessness duty (section 75), are in Band A and with 

direct links to the ward of Abergwili;  

 Direct matches from temporary accommodation that have been 

agreed by the “Move on Panel” or applicants to whom the authority 

owes a full homelessness duty (section 75) and are in Band A. 

32% 
(2 units) 

 
 

Priority B Social Housing transfer applicants in Band A or B, who are not excluded, 
and where their current social housing home is in the ward of Abergwili. 

17% 
(1 unit) 

 
Priority C Non-transfer Band A applicants with direct links to the ward of Abergwili. 17% 

(1 unit) 
 

Priority D Non-transfer Band B applicants with direct links to the ward of Abergwili. 17% 
(1 unit) 

 

Priority E *Key workers who can demonstrate they need accommodation to take up 
or sustain the offer of permanent employment in Carmarthenshire.  

17% 
(1 unit) 

 
*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

 Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, Local Authority social 

workers, registered care staff in our health and social care sector; and 

 Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and Rescue Service, prison 

service and other national security roles. 

 

 

8.0 Advertisement  

Except for Priority group ‘A’ the development will be advertised through Canfod Cartref where 
relevant information will be required so that the adverts are consistent and transparent. 
 

9.0 Shortlisting  

The applicants’ bids will be assessed based on the letting conditions set out in this Local Lettings 
Policy. 

Tudalen 48



5 
 

 

10.0 Equality and Diversity  
 

When letting these homes, WWH will ensure that everyone is treated fairly and is not discriminate on the 
grounds of Age, disability, race and nationality, religion or belief, Pregnancy and Maternity, marriage or 
civil partnership, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment 

 

11.0 Term and Review  

This Local Lettings Policy will remain in place for six months following all homes being let. After this time, 

it will be reviewed by Wales & West Housing Association, to determine its impact on the community and 

to ensure that it has met the initial aims of the policy and whether the term should be extended.    

 
 
Signed on behalf of Wales and West Housing Association: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of Carmarthenshire County Council: 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 
 
 
 

Tudalen 49



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	2 COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU - 3 MAWRTH 2022
	3 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER DYLAN (CAM 2), Y BYNEA
	Adroddiad

	4 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER TERAS GLANMOR, PORTH TYWYN
	Adroddiad

	5 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER GWYNFRYN, SARON
	Adroddiad

	6 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD CYMDEITHAS TAI WALES & WEST, CLOS Y PORTHMYN YN ABERGWILI
	Adroddiad


